
HEALTHCARE AND 

REGULATORY SUBCOMMITTEE 

Wednesday, November 17, 2021 

Table of Contents 

Agenda .............................................................................................................................................................. 2 

Minutes ............................................................................................................................................................. 4 

Study Timeline .................................................................................................................................................. 5 

Agency Snapshot ............................................................................................................................................... 7 

Agency Presentation ......................................................................................................................................... 9 



Agenda

AGENDA 



South Carolina 

House of Representatives 

Legislative Oversight Committee 

HEALTHCARE AND REGULATORY SUBCOMMITTEE 

The Honorable John Taliaferro “Jay” West, IV, Chair 

The Honorable Gil Gatch 

The Honorable Rosalyn D. Henderson-Myers 

The Honorable Timothy A. “Tim” McGinnis 

Wednesday, November 17, 2021 

2PM 

321 - Blatt Building 
Pursuant to Committee Rule 6.8, S.C. ETV shall be allowed access for internet streaming 

whenever technologically feasible. 

AGENDA 

I. Approval of minutes 

II. Discussion of the study of the South Carolina State Accident Fund

III. Adjournment



Minutes

MINUTES 



First Vice-Chair: 

Joseph H. Jefferson, Jr. 

Kambrell H. Garvin 

Rosalyn D. Henderson-Myers 

Jeffrey E. “Jeff” Johnson 

John R. McCravy, III 

Adam M. Morgan 

Melissa Lackey Oremus 

Marvin R. Pendarvis 

Tommy M. Stringer 

Chris Wooten 

Jennifer L. Dobson 

Research Director 

Cathy A. Greer 

Administration Coordinator 

Chair Wm. Weston J. Newton 

Legislative Oversight Committee 

South Carolina House of Representatives 

Post Office Box 11867 

Columbia, South Carolina 29211 

Telephone: (803) 212-6810 • Fax: (803) 212-6811 
     Room 228 Blatt Building 

Gil Gatch 

William M. “Bill” Hixon 

Kimberly O. Johnson 

Josiah Magnuson 

Timothy A. “Tim” McGinnis 

Travis A. Moore 

Russell L. Ott 

Michael F. Rivers, Sr. 

John Taliaferro (Jay) West, IV 

Charles L. Appleby, IV 

Legal Counsel 

Lewis Carter  

Research Analyst/Auditor 

Riley E. McCullough 

Research Analyst 

Legislative Oversight Committee 

Thursday, October 14, 2021 

2:00 pm Blatt Room 110 

Archived Video Available 

I. Pursuant to House Legislative Oversight Committee Rule 6.7, South Carolina ETV was allowed access 

for streaming the meeting.  You may access an archived video of this meeting by visiting the South 

Carolina General Assembly’s website (http://www.scstatehouse.gov) and clicking on Committee 

Postings and Reports, then under House Standing Committees click on Legislative Oversight.  Then, 

click on Video Archives for a listing of archived videos for the Committee. 

Attendance 

I. The Healthcare and Regulatory Subcommittee meeting was called to order by Chair John Taliaferro 

(Jay) West on Thursday, October 14, 2021, in Room 110 of the Blatt Building.  All members were 

present for all or a portion of the meeting.  Representative Timothy A. “Tim” McGinnis and 

Representative Rosalyn D. Henderson-Myers participated virtually in the meeting.  Chair West and 

Representative Gil Gatch participated in person. 

Minutes 

I. House Rule 4.5 requires standing committees to prepare and make available to the public the minutes 

of committee meetings, but the minutes do not have to be verbatim accounts of meetings.  



2 

Approval of Minutes 

I. Representative Gatch makes a motion to approve the meeting minutes, with leave for staff to correct 

a scrivener’s error, from the August 30, 2021, meeting.  A roll call vote was held, and the motion 

passed. 

Rep. Gatch motion to approve the 

August 30, 2021, meeting minutes. 
Yea Nay Not Voting 

Rep. Gatch 

Rep. Henderson-Meyers 

Rep. McGinnis 

Rep. West 

Receipt of Testimony from Constituent 

I. Mr. Jay Bruner of Calhoun County testified about concerns (e.g., competition with private market) 

and suggestions (e.g., increased oversight) he has for operation of the State Accident Fund.  He 

answered questions from the Subcommittee. 

II. Previously, Mr. Bruner provided testimony to the full Committee about the State Accident Fund

during a public input meeting on April 8, 2021.  Chair West reminded Mr. Bruner that he remained

under oath for his testimony to the Healthcare and Regulatory Subcommittee.

Discussion of State Accident Fund 

I. Chair West placed the following personnel from the State Accident Fund under oath: 

a. Abby Sellers, Director of Financial Services (in person);

b. Kirk Adair (in person), Senior Premium Auditor;

c. Meggan Damiano (virtual), Director of Insurance Services;

d. Debra Dozier (virtual), UEF Director of Claims;

e. Jayson Audette (virtual), Inspector General; and

f. Troy Hubbard (virtual), Safety and Loss Control Specialists.

II. Chair West reminded Acting Director Erin Farthing (in person) and Matthew Hansford (in person),

Deputy Director that they remained under oath.

III. Acting Director Farthing provided an overview of the agency’s programs.  Topics discussed include:

a. Mission;

b. Before Worker’s Compensation;

c. The Grand Bargain;

d. Workers’ Compensation in South Carolina;

e. State Accident Fund: Creation and Purpose;



3 

f. Establishment of State Accident Fund;

g. State Accident Fund History;

h. Uninsured Employers’ Fund (UEF);

i. Agency’s Governing body;

j. Duties of agency director as administrator of the agency;

k. Records management; and

l. Risk mitigation.

III. Acting Director Farthing provided an overview of the agency’s organizational units:

a. Accounting;

b. Human Resources;

c. Document Management;

d. Claims Department (State Accident Fund and Uninsured Employers’ Fund);

e. Legal;

f. Special Investigations Unit;

g. Policyholders Services; and

h. Information Technology.

Additionally, Director Farthing discussed the following topics related to organizational units: 

m. FTE’s by organization unit;

n. Exit surveys;

o. Employee satisfaction; and

p. Anonymous employee feedback.

IV. Director of Financial Services Sellers provided a financial overview of the agency.  The following topics

were discussed:

a. Lack of agency’s present ability to accept online payments from policyholders;

b. Agency funding: State Accident Fund (SAF) vs. Uninsured Employers’ Fund(UEF);

c. Finance overview charts;

d. Total premiums collected;

e. Administrative expenditures; and

f. Total claims expenditures.

V. Deputy Director Hansford provided an overview about policyholders. 

a. SAF policyholders and covered employees;

b. Who does SAF cover;

c. Policyholders by region (562 as of meeting date); and

d. State vs nonstate (e.g., fire department, municipalities, etc.) policyholder comparisons.

VI. Acting Director Farthing; Deputy Director Hansford; and Premium Auditor Adair provided an overview

of deliverables.  Deliverables discussed included:



 

4 

 

a. Deliverable #1: premium activities (i.e., lifecycle of policy); 

b. Deliverable #2: safety and loss control requests; 

c. Deliverable #3: SAF claim management; 

d. Deliverable #4: UEF claim management; 

e. Deliverable #5: claim expense recovery; 

f. Deliverable #6: claim investigation; 

g. Deliverable #7: legal representation (in house counsel); 

h. Deliverable #8: legal representation (contract counsel) 

 

VII. Subcommittee members ask questions relating to the following:   

a. The Grand Bargain; 

b. Second Injury Fund; 

c. Uninsured Employers’ Fund (UEF); 

d. Sanctions for employers’ that do not obtain workers’ compensation coverage; 

e. Accountability of agency director; 

f. Prior agency heads; 

g. Federal and local counterparts; 

h. Records management; 

i. Implementation of State Inspector General recommendations from report issued in April 2021; 

j. Metrics of various organizational units; 

k. Number of cases open by special investigations unit; 

l. Process for referral of criminal matters; 

m. Payments by policyholders; 

n. Administrative expenditures; 

o. Premium development; 

p. Experience premium “E-Mod” formula; 

q. Attorney representation by workers; and 

r. Appeals process for injured worker denied a claim. 

 

Agency staff respond to the members’ questions. 

 

Adjournment 

 

I. There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned. 

 



Study Timeline

STUDY TIMELINE 



Timeline of Agency Study 

The House Legislative Oversight Committee’s (Committee) process for studying the South 

Carolina State Accident Fund (agency, Department, or SAF) includes actions by the full 

Committee; Healthcare and Subcommittee (Subcommittee); the agency; and the  public. 

Key dates and actions are listed below. 

December 9, 2019 At Meeting 1, the Committee selects the South Carolina State Accident 

Fund as the next agency for the Healthcare and Regulatory 

Subcommittee to study. 

January 15, 2020 The Committee provides the agency with notice about the oversight 

process. 

February 28 – April 1, 2020 The Committee solicits input from the public about the agency in the 

form of an online public survey. 

     March 6, 2020 The South Carolina State Accident Fund submits its Program 

Evaluation Report. 

April 8, 2021 At Meeting 2, the Committee receives public input regarding the 

agencies selected for study, to include State Accident Fund.  

Oct. 14, 2021 The Subcommittee holds Meeting 3 with the agency to discuss an 

overview of its mission, history, resources, major programs, successes, 

challenges, and emerging issues. 

Nov. 17, 2021 The Subcommittee holds Meeting 4 with the agency to discuss agency 

performance metrics and organizational units. 

Figure 3. Summary of key dates and actions in the study process  

https://www.scstatehouse.gov/CommitteeInfo/HouseLegislativeOversightCommittee/AgencyWebpages/ArtsCommission/Committee%20letter%20to%20Arts%20Commission%20(January%2015%2C%202020).pdf


 

 

 
 

 

Agency Snapshot

AGENCY SNAPSHOT 





Agency Presentation 

AGENCY PRESENTATION 



PERFORMANCE MEASURES

Matthew Hansford
Deputy Director

1



Performance Measure #1

93.50%

94.00%

94.50%

95.00%

95.50%

96.00%

96.50%

97.00%

97.50%

98.00%

98.50%

FY 2016-2017 FY 2017-2018 FY 2018-2019 FY 2019-2020

96.80%

POLICYHOLDER 
SURVEY

Completed 
annually.

Measures 
customer service in 
Claims, Premium, 

and Safety.

Maintain a 
greater than 90% 

positive 
response.

Percentage of Positive Responses on Annual Policyholder Survey

96.00%

96.90%

95.10%

2



94.50%

95.00%

95.50%

96.00%

96.50%

97.00%

FY 2016-2017 FY 2017-2018 FY 2018-2019 FY 2019-2020

96.80%

96.30%VOLUNTARY 
ACCOUNT 

RETENTION

Demonstrates 
good customer 

service and 
competitive rates

The percentage 
of Non-State 

policyholder who 
continued 

coverage with 
SAF

Percentage of Non-State Policyholders Who Continued Coverage

Performance Measure #2

95.43%96.00%

3



0

1

2

3

4

5

6

FY 2016-2017 FY 2017-2018 FY 2018-2019 FY 2019-2020

0

2

WCC CLAIM 
FINES

Average per SC 
Workers’ 

Compensation 
Carrier is 

approximately 
seven (7).

Number of WCC 
Claim Fines. 

Performance Measure #3

Number of Claim Fines Received

5

4



$3,050.00

$3,100.00

$3,150.00

$3,200.00

$3,250.00

$3,300.00

$3,350.00

$3,400.00

FY 2016-2017 FY 2017-2018 FY 2018-2019 FY 2019-2020

$3,349.00

$3,303.00

$3,230.00

AVERAGE 
MEDICAL COST 

PER CLAIM

Number has 
remained consistent 

over the years.

Total medical costs 
divided by the 

number of claims 
received.

Maintain less 
than a 15% 

increase 
compared to 

prior fiscal year.

Performance Measure #4

Average Medical Cost Per Claim Received

$3,174.00

5



$10,000.00

$10,500.00

$11,000.00

$11,500.00

$12,000.00

$12,500.00

FY 2016-2017 FY 2017-2018 FY 2018-2019 FY 2019-2020

$12,272.00

$10,846.00

Performance Measure #5

AVERAGE INDEMNITY 
COST PER CLAIM

Number has remained 
consistent over the 

years.

Total indemnity costs 
divided by the number 

of claims received.

Maintain less 
than a 15% 

increase 
compared to 

prior fiscal year.

Average Indemnity Cost Per Claim Received

6



0.00%

1.00%

2.00%

3.00%

4.00%

5.00%

6.00%

7.00%

8.00%

9.00%

FY 2016-2017 FY 2017-2018 FY 2018-2019 FY 2019-2020

ADMINISTRATIVE 
COST RATIO

Industry average 
is 25% or more.

Demonstrates 
SAF’s ability to 

use funds 
effectively.

Maintain a 
less than 15% 
Administrative 

Cost Ratio.

5.90%

8.50%

Performance Measure #6

Administrative Cost Ratio

7



0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.01%

0.01%

0.01%

FY 2016-2017 FY 2017-2018 FY 2018-2019 FY 2019-2020

.006%

PREMIUM 
PAST DUE

SAF has limited 
issues with 

policyholders 
paying 

untimely.

Percentage of 
premium due 
past 90 days is 
less than 5%.

Performance Measure #7

PERCENT OF PREMIUM BILLED PAST DUE MORE THAN 90 DAYS

0.00% 0.00%

8



0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

18%

FY 2016-2017 FY 2017-2018 FY 2018-2019 FY 2019-2020

13%
12%

16%

MEDICAL VENDOR 
SAVINGS

Savings realized 
through vendor 

partnerships assisting 
with medical bill 

review, pharmacy 
management, and 
physical therapy 

management.

Maintain or exceed 
medical cost savings of 

more than 10%.

Performance Measure #8

Percent of Savings Compared to Total Annual Claim Costs

12%

9



0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

FY 2016-2017 FY 2017-2018 FY 2018-2019 FY 2019-2020

5%

8%
THIRD PARTY 
RECOVERIES

Includes 
Subrogation, 
Second Injury 

Fund, UEF 
Collections, and 

Reinsurance 

Maintain or 
exceed total third 
party recoveries 
of more than 5% 
of annual claim 

spending

10%

Performance Measure #9

Recoveries as a Percentage of Total Annual Claim Costs

7%

10



0.00%

1.00%

2.00%

3.00%

4.00%

5.00%

6.00%

7.00%

8.00%

9.00%

10.00%

FY 2016-2017 FY 2017-2018 FY 2018-2019 FY 2019-2020

4.60%

6.10%

8.90%

NET ASSET 
RETENTION

Shows the 
agency’s 

ability to be 
financially 

solvent.

Show an 
increase in 
net assets 

over the prior 
fiscal year.

Performance Measure #10

Percent Increase of Net Assets Compared to Prior Year

4.70%

11



SUCCESSES, CHALLENGES, & 

EMERGING ISSUES

Erin Farthing
Acting Agency Director

12



Agency Successes

Staffing
Significant shortages throughout the agency.  Affecting morale and service.
Filled vacant positions, which resulted in significant improvements in morale and service to policyholders and injured 
workers.

Improvements in claims handling process
Emphasis on more efficient handling, and more timely and complete resolutions.
Makes future costs for claims more predictable.

Mediation
More focus on meaningful participation in mediation.
85% resolution of claims in mediation in fiscal year 2019-2020, compared to 44% in fiscal year 2017-2018.

COVID-19
Collaborative effort agency wide ensured that a majority of workforce able to work exclusively from home. 
Seamless continuation of claims handling and disability and bill payment.

13



Agency Challenges

New system selection and implementation
Replacement underway several years ago, but selected provider filed for bankruptcy mid-implementation.
About to begin selection process.

Hiring experienced staff
Competition from private market for skilled and experienced staff.

Medical provider availability
Provider must be willing to accept workers’ compensation patients/fee schedule.  
Significant shortages in certain areas, particularly psych providers.

COVID-19
Continues to pose challenges from claims handling perspective, as well as agency wide.

14



Emerging Issues

Staff retention
Worker shortages throughout variety of industries have led to a more competitive job market, and increasing incentives 
from employers.

Technology and data security
Continuously evolving area, which also means new and more advanced security threats.

Medical Marijuana
Potential challenges from workers’ compensation standpoint, in particular with authorization and payment.

COVID-19
Changed so many elements of how people work and interact.  How much of this change is permanent?  How much more 
change is coming?

15



Detail of SAF Organizational Units

16



Director

Dir. of
Financial 
Services

Prem.
Accounts 

Receivable 
Analyst

Cash 
Analyst

Bill 
Processors UEF Analyst

Admin. 
Manager

Accounts 
Payable Receptionist

Accounting Department Director of Financial Services (Accounting/Fiscal

Manager I) (1)

• Plans, directs, and manages activities related to the agency’s 

accounting operations.

• Prepares and delivers annual operating budget and assists

auditors with annual financial statements.

• Ensures accurate documentation of all financial transactions.

• Completes reconciliations on a monthly basis for SAF and UEF 

general ledger accounts.

• Supervises all positions within business support accounting

group and perform annual EPMS reports.

• Manages the claims expense checking account to ensure 

adequate cash flow.

• Provides customer service to providers and adjusters

requesting check information.

• Evaluates and provides financial data regarding revenue and

expenses, assists in the preparation of the accountability

report, premium renewals, reinsurance program, strategic

planning and other assignments at the request of the director

and other state agencies.

• Prepares monthly variance reports and budget status reports.

• Approves SCEIS deposit documents, purchasing documents,

journal entries and transfers.

• Participates and presents department data in monthly

management meetings.
17



Director

Dir. of
Financial 
Services

Prem.
Accounts 

Receivable 
Analyst

Cash 
Analyst

Bill 
Processors UEF Analyst

Admin. 
Manager

Accounts 
Payable Receptionist

• Receives and forwards all facsimiles received through email.

Accounting Department
Premium Analyst (Fiscal Technician II) (1)

• Posts all premium checks and IDT receipts to the policy holder
accounts.

• Processes all refunds requested for credit balances.

• Reviews and matches daily claimant benefit/provider checks 
with EOBs and forms.

• Completes check printing process on Tuesdays and Thursdays,
and as backup for Director of Financial Services.

• Monitors the premium account receivable on a daily basis.
Contacts past due policy holders as needed.

• Reviews and mails all monthly PHS premium invoices. Scans

the state agency invoices and enters IDT billing into SCEIS.

• Reviews all deposits and maintains detailed spreadsheet to
track unapplied receipts for SAF and UEF.

• Monitors check stop pay and cancellation requests.

Receptionist (Administrative Assistant) (1)

• Answers all incoming calls at the main switchboard and directs

to the appropriate personnel.

• Greets all visitors to the agency, guides them through the sign

in process, and notifies the appropriate party of their arrival.

• Receives all deliveries in SCEIS as goods receipt, alerts the

appropriate party or directs delivery to the appropriate

destination.

• Scans and indexes electronic records regarding PAI rejected

bill letters and accounting documents.
18



Director

Dir. of
Financial 
Services

Prem.
Accounts 

Receivable 
Analyst

Cash 
Analyst

Bill 
Processors UEF Analyst

Admin. 
Manager

Accounts 
Payable Receptionist

Accounting Department
Cash Analyst (Fiscal Technician II) (1)

• Audits and deposits all checks received for premiums, provider

refunds, UEF collections, third party, and second injury fund
recoveries.

• Maintains records of all deposits by type and reconciles to SCEIS 
monthly reports.

• Posts all cancellations of claimant benefit checks in CMS.

• Researches and posts all SAF third party and provider refund 
receipts in CMS.

• Ensures that all necessary adjustments are processed in CMS for 
provider refunds and verifies with adjustment EOBs printed.

• Enters Second Injury Fund billings as IDTs in SCEIS.

• Enters all Second Injury Fund receipts in CMS.

• Receives all Second Injury Fund invoices and delivers for 
processing.

• Assists with the check processing on large medical check days.

Bill Processor/Auditor (Accounting/Fiscal Analyst I)

• Serves as primary auditor for all bills received through electronic

billing from PAI. Audits in-house bills when back up is needed.

• Serves as back up for medical bill entry.

• Serves as the main contact and liaison for PAI billing services. This

includes attending all meetings to address billing processes with

PAI.

• Processes all re-evaluations received through electronic billing

notifications from PAI

• Trains all new bill entry employees on CMS and PAI bill processing
19



Director

Dir. of
Financial 
Services

Prem.
Accounts 

Receivable 
Analyst

Cash 
Analyst

Bill 
Processors UEF Analyst

Admin. 
Manager

Accounts 
Payable Receptionist

data in CMS.

Accounting Department
Bill Processor (Fiscal Technician II) (1)

• Sorts through bills received from mail drop to review codes for 
internal processing.

• Enters incoming documents to be paid in accordance with 
established bill processing application procedures.

• Audits and releases in-house and electronically transferred PAI bills
for payment once they have gone through the approval process.

• Pulls invalid CPT code reports and corrects the coding.
• Assists with the check and invoice mailings.
• Serves as back up to the receptionist.

• Performs all necessary duties required with filing unclaimed property
to the State of SC Unclaimed Property Division, to include mailing
required letters to payees of outstanding stale dated checks,
performing address updates, and filing the annual report for any
unclaimed property older than five years.

• Researches past due PAI invoices and processes PAI credit invoices.

Bill Processor (Fiscal Technician II) (1)

• Enters incoming documents to be paid in accordance with 
established bill processing application procedures.

• Maintains vendor data in CMS legal entity window.
• Audits and releases in-house and serves as back up for electronically

transferred PAI bills for payment once they have gone through the
approval process.

• Contacts bill providers for missing information on bills.
• Maintains W-9 files.
• Works the rejected electronic bills requiring updated FEINs, contacts 

vendors for updated W9 forms when necessary and updates vendor

20



Director

Dir. of
Financial 
Services

Prem.
Accounts 

Receivable 
Analyst

Cash 
Analyst

Bill 
Processors UEF Analyst

Admin. 
Manager

Accounts 
Payable Receptionist

• Serves as the procurement and purchasing card contact within the

agency.

Accounting Department
UEF Analyst/Bill Processor (Accounting/Fiscal Analyst I) (1)

• Submits requests to transfer earmarked funds to the UEF fund to

cover claim-related expenses and to transfer funds to the UEF
operating fund for administrative expenses as needed.

• Assists UEF Claims Director with collection letters and information.

• Posts check receipts for UEF claims in CMS.

• Primary bill processor for entering incoming documents to be paid

in accordance with established bill processing application
procedures.

• Enters all UEF claims into the claims management system.

• Assists with the check processing on large medical check days.

Accounts Payable Analyst (Accounting/Fiscal Analyst I) (1)

• Maintains

allocates
accuracy

the agency’s accounts payable on SCEIS system,

expenses according to budgetary structure, ensures
of all accounting data entered, estimates budgetary

needs and prepares appropriation transfers as necessary.

• Serves as agency’s purchaser; reviews purchase requests and

shopping carts for compliance with the State Procurement Code
and issues purchase orders as required.

• Processes vendor invoices for administrative expenses on SCEIS,
including purchasing card statements.

• Maintains accounts payable check register and ACH register from

the Comptroller General’s Office to balance and ensure all checks
requested are received by the agency.

• Assists agency staff in submission of travel reimbursement requests
by scanning in documents and receipts as needed.

21



Bills are received by mail 

and opened

Auditor will notify PAI of changes 

to be makes made, PAI will notify 

bill auditor when changes are 

complete, bill auditor makes 

changes in CMS and changes 

status to “Released”

Bills are routed to PAI for 

review and any necessary 

reductions are applied

Bills placed in 

appropriate 

basket to be 

scanned over 

to PAI

SAF Scanning Department 

files away original bills

SAF Scanning Department 

ensures PAI bills are 

researched and batched

SAF Scanning 

Department 

ensures PAI bills 

are “Committed” 

to PAI through 

an integrated 

system

PAI routes bills 

to adjusters and 

appropriate 

adjuster receives

bill in PAI’s

Mitchell Smart

Advisor

PAI reviews bill one last time 

and makes any necessary 

changes

PAI bills are routed to bill audit 

group in CMS, the bill auditor 

receives work queue and audits the 

bill

PAI bills are 

routed back to 

SAF through 

an integrated 

system and 

indexed in 

OnBase

Bill entered 

and/or 

approved 

correctly?

Bill auditor 

changes the 

status in 

CMS to 

“Released”

Adjuster approves or denies 

bill through PAI’s Mitchell 

Smart Advisor and may also 

notify PAI of any changes to 

approved bill amount by 

making a note

Any errors?

EOBs are matched with 

checks and both are 

mailed out

Invoices are created in 

accounting system, checks 

are printed, and accounting 

system sends data back to 

CMS

EOBs are run, the batch 

changes status in CMS to 

“Paid” and EOBs are printed

IT runs overnight batch jobs 

on Wednesdays and the 

batch edits all released bills

Decision 

whether to 

approve bill
Deny, no further action

CMS changes the status to 

“Paid” and IT imports bills to 

the accounting system

(during the next a.m.)

CMS will change the bill 

status to “Bill Failed Release 

Edits” and the bill will be 

routed back to the auditor

Yes

No

Yes

No

Yes

No

Vendor Bill Review Flowchart

22



Bills are received by mail 

and opened

Auditor will notify the bill 

processor, and the bill 

processor will correct the bill

Bills placed in 

appropriate 

basket to be 

scanned into 

OnBase

SAF Scanning Department 

files away original bills

SAF Scanning Department 

scans the bills into OnBase

The bills route to 

the adjusters and 

the appropriate 

adjuster receives 

work in CMS 

work queue

Adjuster changes status to 

“Approved-not Released”

Bills are routed to bill auditor, 

the bill auditor receives work 

queue and the bill auditor 

audits the bill

Bill entered 

and/or 

approved 

correctly?

Bill auditor 

changes the 

status in 

CMS to 

“Released”

Adjuster reviews and either 

approves or denies bill

Any errors?

EOBs are matched with 

checks and both are 

mailed out

Invoices are created in 

accounting system, checks 

are printed, and accounting 

system sends data back to 

CMS

EOBs are run, the batch 

changes status in CMS to 

“Paid”, populates check 

number and EOBs are 

printed

IT runs overnight batch jobs 

on Wednesdays and the 

batch edits all released bills

Decision 

whether to 

approve bill

Deny, no further action

CMS changes the status to 

“Paid” and IT imports bills to 

the accounting system

(during the next a.m.)

CMS will change the bill 

status to “Bill Failed Release 

Edits” and the bill will be 

routed back to the auditor

Yes

No

Yes

Indexers index bills according 

to bill type

Bills are routed 

to the bill 

processors and 

the bill 

processors 

receive work in 

OnBase queue

Bill processor informs bill 

auditor

Yes

Yes

No

No

23

In-House Bill Review Flowchart



Accounting Department Metrics

24

The Accounting Department tracks the following metrics:

• Over 30 days past due premium.

• Monthly and yearly variance on revenue and expense accounts (cash basis).

• Monthly and yearly budget expenditures by cost center and GL account.

• Claims Management System vendor bill status.

• Deposits by day and amount.

• Number of checks and check type printed.

• Number of premium invoices printed.

• Number of bills entered and errors.

• Vendor/Provider payments.

• Reconciliations by completion date.



Director

Human 
Resources 

Director

Benefits 
Coordinator

Human Resources
Human Resources Director (Human Resource Manager I) (1)

• Applies State and Federal Law, and South Carolina HR guidelines to assist 

agency staff with human resource related issues.

• Responsible for the direct supervision of Benefits Coordinator.

• Prepares labor and financial forecasting related to agency’s annual budget.

• Administers agency’s EEO and Affirmative Action programs.

• Maintains and updates personnel and organizational management in SCEIS.

• Serves as agency’s talent acquisition manager.

• Serves as a member of agency’s management committee.

Benefits Coordinator (Administrative Coordinator II) (1)

• Coordinates the agency’s new hire on-boarding process.

• Processes all benefit enrollments, separations, and change of status actions.

• Creates and maintains the agency’s employee benefit files.

• Manages the agency’s employee recognition program.

• Administers leave of action for military leave, extended illness, FMLA, etc.

• Serves as time administrator for the SCEIS payroll system.

• Generates and monitors a variety of monthly and quarterly HR reports.

25



Start New Hire 

Orientation 

Begin training for hired 

position

Review and complete SAF 

New Hire Paperwork and 

Forms

Watch training 

video
Review SAF’s 

internal website 

Review agency contacts and 

staff directories

SCEIS Training

Review state 

probation period 

and agency 

performance 

review process

Review insurance and 

benefits

Office Tour and 

introduction 

Review working hours, 

breaks, lunch, time and leave 

training

Review SAF Confidentiality 

and Shredding Policies

Review timekeeping 

Review SAF’s Policy and 

Procedures

Review monthly timesheet 

instructions

Review pay dates and benefit 

deductions

Review helpdesk request 

instructions

Complete SAF Code of 

Conduct Training

New Hire Orientation Flowchart

26



Employee submits letter or

resignation, retirement, 

etc. to direct supervisor

Remove system access 

and deactivate employee 

badge

Departing employee and 

direct supervisor meet to 

begin the exit process and 

complete the appropriate 

portion of the Exit Procedure 

Form

Direct supervisor begins 

completion of Appendix A –

Exit Procedure Form

Departing employee and 

Benefit Administrator meet to 

review, if applicable, transfer 

leave, leave payout, COBRA 

benefits, retirement 

information etc.

Departing employee and 

agency director meet for exit 

interview

Direct 

supervisor 

notifies Human 

Resources of 

the intended 

separation

Employee Off Boarding Flowchart

27



Human Resources Department Metrics

The Human Resources Department tracks the following metrics:

• Absence rate (Employee absences/total working hours).

• YTD Use of Leave Rate (Leave hours/working days).

• Monthly timesheet audit.

• Number of employees eligible for retirement.

• Average years in state service.

• Number of separations.

• Number of new hires.

• Average monthly benefit costs.

28



Director

Deputy
Director

Dir. of 
Insurance
Services

Supervisor of
Scan/Indexing

Scanners and
Indexers

Document Management Director of Insurance Services (Program Manager II) (1)

•Responsible for direct supervision of Scanners/Indexers.

•Serves as backup for daily printing and delivery of WCC

Form 18s and policyholder statements.

•Maintains and develops the agency’s document

management workflow.

Scanners/Indexers (Administrative Assistant) (3)

• Researches batches, and scans claim related documents.

• Indexes claim related documents to the appropriate claim and

document category

• Prints and delivers WCC Form 18s and policyholder statements

daily.

• Postmarks and runs all agency mail to the post office each

• Reviews rejected medical bills from bill review vendor daily.

29



Scan 

Singles?

Start Setup: Open On-

Base application home 

page

Click Batch Scanning on the 

right

Capture tab opens, click Scan 

Format from dropdown and 

choose Single Sided

Select Scan Mode: No index

or Pre-index padlock icon

Name batch

For Multi, click Batch 

Scanning on the right

Prompt to Change Format 

from Single to Multi

Scan batch

Click Done to end scanning 

for batch

Scan batch

(Do Not use batch sheet 

before the first doc)

Yes

No

Click Append for all 

additional pages to the 

document

Click Index when done and 

next document will pull up

After Indexing Stopped or 

Completed appears, click 

Save and Transition

After Awaiting Commit 

appears, click Ready to 

Commit

Indexer will add 

indexing info to 

first page of 

document when 

indexing multi-

docs

Enter claim number (include 

03 or 08 designator)

Click Search and all 

documents for claim 

appears

Start Scan: Click 

Scan button to 

the left of Tool 

Bar

Start On-Base

Indexing: Click

Batch 

Processing

Start Document

Retrieval: Click

Custom Queries 

on Homepage

Choose first doc and add 

pertinent indexing info in 

fields on the left

AA

A AA

A

Document Management Workflow

30



Document Management Metrics

31

The document management team tracks the following metrics:

• Number of documents scanned.

• Type of documents scanned.

• Number of documents indexed.

• Type of documents indexed.



Business Support Staffing and Turnover

32

Current employees: 13 (3 current vacancies)

*The above numbers include Accounting, Human Resources, and Document Management employees.

Fiscal Year Employee Count at 

the Start of Fiscal Year

Employee Count at 

the End of Fiscal Year

Employee Losses 

During Fiscal Year

2019-2020 12 17 0

2018-2019 7 10 1

2017-2018 9 10 0

2016-2017 10 9 1



Director

Deputy
Director

Dir. of 
Insurance 
Services

Dir. of Claims 
(SAF)

Trainer QSA
Claims

Supervisors

Insurance
Analyst III

Insurance
Analyst II

Insurance
Analyst I

33

State Accident Fund

Claim Department

Deputy Director (Program Manager II) (1)

• Responsible for direct supervision of the Director of Insurance Services.

• Participates in development of annual department budget.

• Collects department data for annual Accountability Report, Premium Renewal 
and Reinsurance Renewal.

• Coordinates agency’s Medicare Coordination of Benefits program.

• Serves as the executive contact for all claim service vendor partnerships.

• Serves as the Procurement Officer for claim related service contracts.

• Participates and presents department data in monthly management meetings.

Director of Insurance Services (Program Manager II) (1)

• Ensures the SAF & UEF Claim Departments, Quality Service Department, and the

Records Management Department processes are in accordance with the rules

and regulates set forth in Title 42, the SC Workers’ Compensation Commission,

SC Regulation 67 and agency policy and procedure.

• Responsible for the direct supervision of the SAF & UEF Director of Claims, QSA,

and records management staff.

• Manages SAF & UEF Third Party Subrogation Program.

• Manages the UEF Collections Program.

• Reconciles the Second Injury Fund outstanding receivables.

• Oversees the Training and Claims Audit Programs.

• Interfaces with IT and external (existing and prospective) vendors to ensure all

claims related business relationships and implementations are successful.

• Participates and presents department data in monthly management meetings.



Director

Deputy
Director

Dir. of 
Insurance 
Services

Dir. of Claims 
(SAF)

Trainer QSA
Claims

Supervisors

State Accident Fund

Claim Department SAF Director of Claims (Program Manager I) (1)

• Ensures the SAF Claims Department’s claim handling processes are in

accordance with the rules and regulates set forth in Title 42, the SC

Workers’ Compensation Commission, SC Regulation 67 and agency

policy and procedure.

• Response for the direct supervision of the claim supervisors and their

respective responsibilities.

• Assists with the direction and training of SAF claim personnel.

• Serves as the claim adjuster for assigned policyholder.

• Responsible for all SAF Claim Department reporting and monitoring.

• Coordinates the medical savings account (MSA) referrals.

• Coordinates referrals to DSS Child Support Services regarding

outstanding child support liens.

• Administers Insurance Service Office (ISO) accounts for all adjusters.

• Participates and presents department data in monthly management

meetings.

Insurance
Analyst III

Insurance
Analyst II

Insurance
Analyst I

34



Director

Deputy
Director

Dir. of 
Insurance 
Services

Dir. of Claims 
(SAF)

Trainer QSA
Claims

Supervisors

State Accident Fund

Claim Department

Insurance
Analyst III

Insurance
Analyst II

Insurance
Analyst I

35

Quality Service Analyst (Insurance Analyst III) (1)

• Designs, coordinates, and develops training for new and other
designated personnel.

• Maintains claims audit schedule.

• In conjunction with Claim Supervisors conducts claim audits.

• Provides post-audit plans for adjusters and supervisors designed to

increase productivity and foster success.

• Develops and maintains the Claims Training Manual.

• Conducts a minimum of four in-depth claim reviews a month.

• Collaborates with SAF Management to share information with IT to

enhance the functionality of the claims management system.

• Participates in integration of new software systems, when needed.



Claims Supervisor (Program Coordinator II) (4)

• Ensures the claim handling processes of their respective team
members are in accordance with the rules and regulates set forth in
Title 42, the SC Workers’ Compensation Commission, SC Regulation 67
and agency policy and procedure.

• Responsible for the direct supervision of five Insurance Analysts I 
and/or II and one Insurance Analyst I.

• Assists with the training and development of their respective staff.
• Serves as the claim adjuster for assigned policyholder(s).
• Responsible for weekly reporting by individual team members.
• Reviews a minimum of five open claims for each team member on a

monthly basis.
• Serves as part of the audit team along with the Quality Service

Analyst.

Director

Deputy
Director

Dir. of 
Insurance 
Services

Dir. of Claims 
(SAF)

Trainer QSA
Claims

Supervisors

State Accident Fund

Claim Department

Insurance
Analyst III

Insurance
Analyst II

Insurance
Analyst I

36



Director

Deputy
Director

Dir. of 
Insurance 
Services

Dir. of Claims 
(SAF)

Trainer QSA
Claims

Supervisors

State Accident Fund

Claim Department

Insurance
Analyst III

Insurance
Analyst II

Insurance
Analyst I

37

Senior Claim Adjuster (Insurance Analyst III) (8)

• Senior member of the claims unit.

• Assists Claim Supervisor upon request.

• Manages incoming and existing claims for all assigned policyholders to

include authorizing medical and lost time payments, settling claims,

and setting reserves, etc. in accordance with SC Workers’

Compensation Law, SC Workers’ Compensation Fee Schedule and SAF

agency policy and procedure.

• Completes 60-day reviews on all active files and 90-day reviews on

Medical for Life files.



Director

Deputy
Director

Dir. of 
Insurance 
Services

Dir. of Claims 
(SAF)

Trainer QSA
Claims

Supervisors

State Accident Fund

Claim Department

Insurance
Analyst III

Insurance
Analyst II

Insurance
Analyst I

38

Claim Adjuster (Claim Analyst II) (12)

• Manages incoming and existing claims for all assigned policyholders to

include authorizing medical and lost time payments, settling claims,

and setting reserves, etc. in accordance with SC Workers’

Compensation Law, SC Workers’ Compensation Fee Schedule and SAF

agency policy and procedure.

• Completes 60-day reviews on all active files and 90-day reviews on

Medical for Life files.

Claim Technician (Claim Analyst I) (4)

• Assists an individual Claim Team with the administrative duties

necessary to adjudicate all claims properly.

• Drafts, mails, and follows up on claim related correspondence as

assigned by the Claim Adjuster(s).

• Enters FROI data on incoming claims.

• Drafts informal conference documents

• Verifies mileage reimbursement to injured workers.

• Responds to incoming phone calls from providers, injured workers, etc.



Medical Management 

Vendor sends claim to SAF 

via EDI or email

Premium Audit Team Verifies 

Coverage

Claimant or attorney 

submits claim via Form 

50/52 or other legal action

• Policyholder

• Jurisdiction

• Loss Location

• Classification

• Policy Effective Date

• Policy in Force during loss

Employer calls in claim

Process routes claim to 

assigned adjuster for 

employer’s policy

Claims Technician enters

claims data into system

SAF Claims Department New Claim Receipt Workflow

39



Claims adjuster request 

WCC Form 20 Wage 

Statement from the 

employer

All WCC Forms associated 

with the initial payment are

filed with the Workers’ 

Compensation 

Commission

Initial payment of Temporary 

Total Benefits is issued

If required, scheduled weekly 

payments are setup in the 

claim system

Claims adjuster confirms 

Average Weekly Wage and 

Compensability rate for the 

injured worker

If applicable, the adjuster 

confirms and deducts any 

applicable child support liens

Weekly Indemnity Benefit Flowchart

40



New claim received with 

potential for third party 

liability and possible 

recovery

Vendor interacts with the 

Director of Insurance Services 

regarding status of workers’ 

comp (WC) liens and for 

authority on the resolution of 

WC liens 

Director of Insurance Services 

goes to each file on which a 

remittal was received, adjusts 

the balance of the lien and 

closes the file (if appropriate)

A

Claims adjuster contacts the 

Director of Insurance Services 

via email 

Director of Insurance Services 

emails claim number and 

name to SAF’s vendor for 

third party subrogation 

Vendor  researches the claim 

and attempts to identify any 

potentially liable parties (to 

include other carriers, 

employers, or individuals)

Praxis receives daily feed of 

incoming claims from SAF 

to review and monitor for 

subrogation potential on 

new flies

Vendor researches the claim 

and attempts to identify any 

potentially liable parties (to 

include other carriers, 

employers, or individuals)

Vendor monitors the statue 

of limitations from the date of 

loss (date of incident or 

medical event in question)

Vendor sends Notices of 

Liens to all identified third 

parties by email or regular 

mail

If applicable, the Director of 

Insurance Services prepares 

itemized Medical and 

Indemnity Ledgers for 

Vendor to provide to adverse 

parties

Adverse parties, via Vendor or 

directly, seeks approval of any 

civil settlements in which SAF or 

UEF has a vested interest for 

recovery on a WC lien, via the 

Director of Insurance Services

When the civil matter has 

been resolved, Vendor 

negotiates the resolution of 

the WC lien with the adverse 

party (with the authority of the 

Director of Insurance Services

For lien resolutions where 

SAF or UEF recovers >$2,500, 

a Third Party Petition will be 

filed with the SCWCC 

pursuant to Regulation 67-

805. 

Petitions are drafted by the 

Director of Insurance Services 

or the adverse party and 

signed by counsel at SAF or 

UEF

Does civil 

settlement 

occur prior to 

resolution?

The Director of Insurance 

Services and WC claims 

adjuster discuss if the adverse 

party should hold the funds 

in trust pending the 

resolution of comp case 

Proceed with negotiating the 

lien prior to the resolution 

(typical when civil recovery 

was limited due to minimum 

limits or other various 

reasons)

Decision 

whether or 

not to hold 

funds in trust

Decision to 

waive lien

The Director of Insurance 

Services and claims adjuster 

give consent to waive lien 

Following resolution, lien 

reimbursement checks are to 

be sent to Vendor who 

cashes the checks and sends 

SAF a new check, less 

Vendor’ fees 

Will SAF or 

UEF recover 

more than 

$2,500?

Third Party Petition will be filed 

with the SCWCC

Potential for 

lien recovery 

AA

AA

SAF receives lien reimbursement 

checks, logs them into the claims 

management system and a copy 

of the remittals is sent to Director 

of Insurance Services 

Yes

Yes

Yes

Hold funds in trust Yes

Subrogation Recovery Flowchart

41



Claims Department (SAF) Metrics

42

The SAF Claims Department tracks the following metrics:

1. Incoming claims by claim type (report only, medical only, lost time) and team distribution.

2. Claim closures by team.

3. Closing ratios by team.

4. Average spent at the time of closure (indemnity and medical) by team.

5. Average compensability time per adjuster.

6. Average medical bill payment time per adjuster.

7. Settlement count by team and dollar amount.

8. Average settlement amount by team.

9. Total open caseload per adjuster.

10. Annual audit score per adjuster.

11. Number and amount of claim fines paid to Workers’ Compensation Commission.

12. Annual claims savings realized through vendor partnerships.

13. Positive and negative comments to annual policyholder survey.



SAF Claim Department Staffing and Turnover

43

Current employees: 32 (no current vacancies)

Fiscal Year Employee Count at 

the Start of Fiscal Year

Employee Count at 

the End of Fiscal Year

Employee Losses 

During Fiscal Year

2019-2020 26 29 4

2018-2019 27 26 7

2017-2018 29 29 4

2016-2017 25 29 5



Director

Deputy 
Director

Dir. of 
Insurance 
Services

Dir. of
Claims
(UEF)

Claims 
Adjuster II

Claims 
Adjuster I

Claims 
Technician

44

Uninsured Employers’ Fund
Claims Department

Deputy Director (Program Manager II) (1)

• Responsible for the direct supervision of the Director of Insurance

Services.

• Participates in development of annual department budget.

• Collects of department data for annual Accountability Report.

• Coordinates agency’s Medicare Coordination of Benefits program.

• Serves at the executive contact for all claim service vendor 

partnerships.

• Serves as the Procurement Officer for claim related service

contracts.

Director of Insurance Services (Program Manager II) (1)

• Responsible for the operational claim functions of the UEF, including

the direct supervision of the UEF Director of Claims.

• Manages the UEF Collections Program and coordinates the UEF

Collections Team to ensure consistent recoveries.

• Oversees the Training and Claims Audit Programs for UEF claims

department.



Director

Deputy 
Director

Dir. of 
Insurance 
Services

Dir. of
Claims
(UEF)

Claims 
Adjuster II

Claims 
Adjuster I

Claims 
Technician

Uninsured Employers’ Fund
Claims Department

UEF Director of Claims (Program Manager I) (1)

• Manages the UEF’s claim administration process, serving as the

senior claims administrator for the UEF.

• Responsible for the effectiveness of the UEF’s claims management,

assisting with the direction and training of UEF claim personnel,

claims reporting and monitoring, and participation in the large

claim resolution process.

• The primary handler of the UEF collections effort, as well as a

member of the Management Committee.

• Responsible for a limited caseload of claims and the management

of those claims in accordance with SC Workers’ Compensation

Law.

Senior Claim Adjuster (Insurance Analyst III) (1)

• Works as a senior member of the claims unit.

• Manages and monitors all assigned claims, to include authorizing

medical and lost time payments, settling claims, and setting

reserves, in accordance with SC Workers’ Compensation Law.

• Follows their assigned claims from inception to resolution and

completes 90-day reviews on all active files.

• Maintains detailed documentation in their files, and interacts with

medical providers, injured workers, medical management

vendors, and attorneys in a timely and professional manner.

• Assists other members of their claims unit, when needed or when
requested to do so by the UEF Director of Claims. 45



Director

Deputy 
Director

Dir. of 
Insurance 
Services

Dir. of
Claims
(UEF)

Claims 
Adjuster II

Claims 
Adjuster I

Claims 
Technician

46

Uninsured Employers’ Fund
Claims Department

Claim Adjuster (Insurance Analyst II) (1)

• Works as a member of the claims unit.

• Manages and monitors all assigned claims, to include
authorizing medical and lost time payments, settling claims,

and setting reserves, in accordance with SC Workers’

Compensation Law.

• Follows their assigned claims from inception to resolution and

completes 90-day reviews on all active files.

• Maintains detailed documentation in their files, and interacts

with medical providers, injured workers, medical management

vendors, and attorneys in a timely and professional manner.

Claim Technician (Insurance Analyst I) (1)

• Assists an individual Claim Team with the administrative duties

necessary to adjudicate all claims properly.

• Drafts, mails, and follows up on claim related correspondence

as assigned by the Claim Adjuster(s).

• Enters of First Report of Injury data on incoming claims, drafting

informal conference documents and notices of liens, verifying

mileage, and responding to incoming phone calls from

providers, injured workers, etc.



UEF found 

liable?

Form 50 received as 

“Denied”

Claims Review Team 

perform discovery

Claims Review Team

discuss Form 50 hearing

Check Secretary of 

State site: verify 

Employer (ER), if LLC 

or sole proprietor, 

confirm correct ER 

listed, add anyone 

discovered to action

Form 50 Hearing

File Closed

Proceed with Claims 

Management / try 

settlement

Responsible 

ER

identified?

File Notice of Lien (NOL) 

against responsible 

employer

File UCC1 w/Secretary

of State

Follow WC claim until final 

lien is reached

Reach out to LLR or ISO 

(If an AOL/COJ exists, a 

NOL is not required

• Incorporate lien

payment 

agreement into 

settlement doc

• AOL/COJ signed

and filed

UEF adjuster enters total 

agreed upon lien amount 

into CMS

Yes

No

Yes

No

New Lien Procedure

Pursue payment on lien

Payments logged into 

SAFnet report for UEF 

Collections

File Judgement if 

employer defaults on 

AOL/COJ payments

UEF New Claim & Lien Recovery Process

47



UEF Claims Department Metrics

48

The UEF Claims Department tracks the following metrics:

1. Number of claims received.

2. Number of claims closed.

3. Incoming claims by type.

4. Closing ratio.

5. Average spent at the time of closure (indemnity and medical).

6. Settlement count and dollar amount.

7. Dollar amount of collection recoveries.



UEF Claim Department Staffing and Turnover

49

Current employees: 4 (no current vacancies)

Fiscal Year Employee Count at 

the Start of Fiscal Year

Employee Count at 

the End of Fiscal Year

Employee Losses 

During Fiscal Year

2019-2020 3 4 0

2018-2019 6 6 0

2017-2018 3 3 0

2016-2017 3 3 0



Director

Chief 
Counsel

Deputy
Counsels

Litigation 
Coordinator Paralegals

35

Legal
Chief Counsel (Attorney III) (1)

• Responsible for the operational functions of the Legal Department.

• Represents the agency and policyholders in litigation before the SC

Workers’ Compensation Commission and appeals through the Supreme

Court.

• Provides legal advice to agency management and staff, including

analysis of statutes, regulations, legislative acts, court decisions and

general workers’ compensation law and procedures.

• Conducts legal research and applies research findings to assist in

determination of compensability, denials, settlements and disputed

issues.

• Acts as liaison between SAF employees and contract attorneys as

needed.

• Participates and presents department data in monthly management
meetings.



Deputy Counsel (SAF) (Attorney III/Attorney II) (2)

• Represents the State Accident Fund and policyholder in litigation
before the SC Worker’s Compensation Commission and appeals
through the Supreme Court.

• Provides legal advice to the agency staff, including analysis of
statutes, regulations, legislative acts, court decisions and general 
workers’ compensation law and procedures.

• Conducts legal research and apply research findings to assist in
determination of compensability, denials, settlements, and disputed
issues.

Chief 
Counsel

Deputy Counsel (UEF) (Attorney III) (1)

• Represents the Uninsured Employers’ Fund litigation before the SC

Worker’s Compensation Commission and appeals through the
Supreme Court.

• Provides legal advice to the UEF staff, including analysis of statutes,
regulations, legislative acts, court decisions and general workers’
compensation law and procedures.

• Conducts complex legal research and apply research findings to assist
in determination of compensability, denials, settlements, and disputed
issues.

Director

Deputy
Counsels

Litigation 
Coordinator Paralegals

50

Legal



Litigation Coordinator (Program Manager I) (1)

• Receives requests to send claim to contract attorney and processes 

legal files to mail to contract attorneys.

• Prepares Form 1s for all contract attorney as required by Attorney

General’s office.

• Serves as SAF liaison for agency cases being handled by contract 

attorneys.

• Drafts and prepares memos, reports and correspondence pertaining

to all aspects of the contract attorney program.

• Reviews and processes all incoming correspondence from contract 

attorneys.

• Maintains contract attorney budget and advises Chief Counsel on

contract attorney budget matters.

• Reviews and approves all contract attorney statements for legal

services and litigated expenses incurred on legal files.

• Tracks metrics and prepares reports regarding performance within 

legal department and contract attorney performance

• Maintains a hearing calendar for all farmed out cases.

Director

Chief 
Counsel

Deputy
Counsels

Litigation 
Coordinator Paralegals

51

Legal



Paralegals (3)

• SAF has two paralegals who perform duties related more specifically 
to claim handling.

• Prepares and processes approved settlement documents and Orders.
• Prepares each file where a hearing is requested by pulling and organizing

copies of medicals.
• Drafts various WCC required forms and prepares other legal documents for 

filing, to include Pre-hearing Briefs, appeals briefs, etc.
• Assists attorneys in preparing all claims scheduled for hearing to include

setting depositions and securing updated medical reports and responding
to telephone inquiries and written correspondence.

• In medically complex claims, prepares a medical chronology and
summary.

• Maintains a reminder system to ensure all deadlines are met.

• A third paralegal performs more agency-wide and department-wide
functions.

• Receives and sorts all incoming agency mail.
• Processes all legal mail and places deadlines on the legal calendar and 

on legal deadline sheet.
• Processes all in-house and contract attorney hearing notices and clincher 

conference notices received from the WCC.
• Enters hearing date in system and on SAF Legal Calendar.
• Enters pre-hearing brief deadlines in system and on deadline sheet.
• Drafts and processes all SAF Pro-Se and Represented Clincher documents.
• Schedules and calendars all SAF in-house mediations.
• Process and submit all SAF wage report requests.
• Processes all subpoenas received by SAF.
• Coordinates with policyholder when subpoena requests employment 

records.

Legal

Director

Chief 
Counsel

Deputy
Counsels

Litigation 
Coordinator Paralegals

52



Uninsured Employers’ Fund Legal Assistant (Administrative
Assistant) (1)

• Prepares and processes all approved settlement documents 
and Orders for UEF in house claims.

• Prepares Deadline Sheet for responsive forms and Pre-hearing
Briefs.

• Drafts various WCC required forms and prepares other legal
documents for filing, to include Pre-hearing Briefs, appeals 
briefs, etc.

• Assists UEF attorney in preparing all claims scheduled for
hearing to include setting depositions and securing updated 
medical reports, responding to telephone inquiries and written
correspondence.

• In medically complex claims, prepares a medical chronology
and summary.

• Maintains a reminder system.
• Files documents related to UEF’s lien against responsible 

employer, including the Agreement to Repay & Confession of
Judgment.

• Once lien is satisfied, or the employer is determined to not be
responsible, files the necessary documents to satisfy liens.

Legal

Director

Chief 
Counsel

Deputy
Counsels

Litigation 
Coordinator Paralegals

53



Attorney & 

Adjuster agree 

to request 

hearing

Form or Motion is

drafted and filed

In-house attorney 

conducts needed 

discovery

Decision

whether

to keep

in-house

Yes

Decision 

regarding 

need to 

mediate

Send to contract 

attorney coordinator to 

farm out

Contract attorney 

conducts needed 

discovery

Hearing set

Hearing held before 

Single Commissioner

Decision 

whether to 

appeal

Issues for hearing 

resolved

Appeal to SC Court of 

Appeals

Consent Order

Settlement

Single Commissioner 

decision appealed to Full 

Commission
Decision 

whether to 

appeal

Mediation Conducted

No

Yes

Yes

Hearing Request 

withdrawn

No

Yes

Decision 

whether to 

appeal

Yes

Appeal to SC 

Supreme Court

Claim sent to contract 

attorney for handling

SAF Hearing
Request Flowchart

54



Reviewed by 

adjuster and 

attorney

Response to request for 

hearing is drafted and 

filed

In-house attorney 

conducts needed 

discovery

Decision

whether

to keep

in-house

Yes

Decision 

regarding 

need to 

mediate

Send to contract 

attorney coordinator to 

farm out

Contract attorney 

conducts needed 

discovery

Hearing set

Hearing held before 

Single Commissioner

Decision 

whether to 

appeal

Issues for hearing 

resolved

Appeal to SC Court of 

Appeals

Consent Order

Settlement

Single Commissioner 

decision appealed to Full 

Commission
Decision 

whether to 

appeal

Mediation Conducted

No

Yes

Yes

Hearing Request 

withdrawn

No

Yes

Decision 

whether to 

appeal

Yes

Appeal to SC 

Supreme Court

Claim sent to contract 

attorney for handling

Hearing request 

received and 

processed by 

paralegal Injured Worker
Hearing Request 

Flowchart

55



Legal Metrics

The Legal Department tracks the following metrics:

1. Hearings set/held by SAF in-house attorney (tracks the number of cases set for a hearing and
held).

2. Contract attorney budget (monthly expenses).

3. Contract attorney monthly costs.

4. Cases farmed-out to contract attorneys detail (number of cases farmed and location).

5. Cases farmed-out to contract attorneys totals.

6. Cases farmed out to contract attorneys archives (broken down by claim teams for a three 
month period).

7. Settled and farmed out claims by contract attorney (details monthly and year-to-date data).

8. Trigger report.

9. Mediations year-to-date.

10. Legal team monthly litigation (tracks Form 50, Form 50 claim only, filed Form 15, informal 
conferences, clincher conferences, claims with attorneys and settled by clincher for month, 
and the number of Decision and Orders received).

11. All litigation (broken down by claims teams). 56



Legal Department Staffing and Turnover

Current employees: 9 (no current vacancies)

57

Fiscal Year Employee Count at 

the Start of Fiscal Year

Employee Count at 

the End of Fiscal Year

Employee Losses 

During Fiscal Year

2019-2020 6 8 2

2018-2019 7 6 2

2017-2018 8 8 1

2016-2017 8 8 0



Director

Chief
Counsel

Inspector
General

Investigators

Special Investigations Unit
Chief Counsel

• Responsible for the direct supervision of the Inspector General.

• Participates in development of annual department budget.

• Provides legal guidance and advice as needed in investigations.
• Reviews records in referred claims involving suspected fraud.

Inspector General (Investigator IV) (1)

• Supervises all employees of the SIU department, to include completing

EPMS planning and evaluation stages for team members.

• Directs, manages, performs, and assists with in-depth investigations

regarding the compensability of workers’ compensation claims as

requested by a SAF policyholder or SAF/UEF claim adjuster.

• Conducts good-faith dependency investigations in cases involving the

death of a SAF/UEF claimant and provides hearing testimony regarding

same as needed.

• Directs and coordinates referrals and investigative support efforts (e.g.,

surveillance) with outside intelligence firms.

• Works with claims staff and legal department to detect potential

fraudulent claims and serves as agency liaison for referrals for possible

prosecution.

• Directs and manages the access control program, consults on physical

security matters, and coordinates or supplements training for the

Agency, and liaise with law enforcement as needed.

• Participates and presents department data in monthly management

meetings.
58



Director

Chief
Counsel

Inspector
General

Investigators

Special Investigations Unit

SIU Special Investigators (Investigator III/Investigator II) (2)

• Performs and assists with in-depth investigations regarding the

compensability of workers’ compensation claims as requested
by a SAF policyholder and/or SAF/UEF adjuster.

• Conducts good-faith dependency investigations in cases

involving the death of a SAF/U EF claimant and provides hearing
testimony regarding same as needed.

• Performs and/or assists with other investigations or tasks as
requested.

• Provides requested information regarding investigations to

policyholders.

59



Compensability 

Investigation requested by 

SAF/UEF claims adjuster 

or SAF policyholder who 

notifies claims adjuster 

Confers and collaborates with 

SAF/UEF Claims Department 

and UEF attorney regarding 

investigation plan, etc. as 

needed

Notify Inspector General (IG) 

to review, examine and 

assess the file and referral

In-house investigator reviews 

entire file and related 

law(s)/regulation(s) for 

application, examines and 

assesses, makes notes and 

develops investigation plan

SAF IG assigns case to in-

house investigator and 

communicates further 

directions to assigned 

investigator, if needed

B

A

A

Investigation referral request 

submitted to SAF/UEF claim 

supervisor

Decision 

whether to 

authorize 

referral

Request/subpoenas additional 

relevant documents, including 

medical records, 

incident/accident reports, 

witness statements, 

video/audio/photos, and 

personnel records 

Interviews and obtains statements 

from employer/policyholder/insured 

collateral contacts, including Human 

Resources, Workers’ Compensation 

coordinator, claimant’s supervisor(s), 

co-worker(s), etc. 

Interviews and obtains 

statement(s) from the 

claimant or claimant’s 

attorney if represented

Interviews and obtains 

statements from any 

witnesses 

Compiles relevant records 

and statements and 

document all case activities, 

findings and summaries for 

submission to the WCC

Locates and interviews other 

parties (e.g. next-of-kin, and 

other family, relatives, possible 

beneficiaries or dependent(s) if 

any, neighbors, friends, and 

associates/etc.)

Coordinates area 

newspaper(s)/publication(s) 

where decedent lived to advertise 

Legal Notice for notifying and 

locating heir(s)-at-

law/beneficiaries/dependent(s)

Coordinates with interagency 

partners and/or out-of-state 

agencies and organizations 

for records and testimony

Investigation is not warranted 

and supervisor provides 

guidance to claims adjuster

Provides testimony at 

hearings as needed 

Perform additional records collection 

and information gathering to 

include: vital records, 

coroner/medical examiner/forensic 

pathology/toxicology/autopsy 

reports, probate court/family 

court/tax/funeral home records

No

Yes

Investigator reviews all collected 

information and makes 

recommendation to claim 

adjuster and legal

Policyholder 

reports death to 

SAF/Form 52 filed

New Death Investigation FlowchartNew Compensability Investigation Flowchart

60

Interviews and obtains statements 

from employer/policyholder/insured 

collateral contacts, including Human 

Resources, Workers’ Compensation 

coordinator, claimant’s supervisor(s), 

co-worker(s), etc. 



Claim file assessed by 

SAF/UEF Claims 

Department and/or 

SAF/UEF attorney

SAF IG reviews and monitors 

assignment communications, 

case activities and findings, 

and offers assistance, 

guidance and 

recommendations as needed

SAF Inspector General (IG) is 

notified to review, examine 

and assess the file and 

referral

SAF IG is looped in on all 

communications regarding 

assignment

SAF IG assigns case and 

communicates further with 

outside intelligence vendor

SAF IG coordinates and 

collaborates with a contracted 

intelligence services firm (from a 

panel of companies procured and 

authorized through State 

Procurement ), as well as assigned

SAF/UEF claim adjuster

Referral request submitted to 

SAF/UEF Claim Supervisor

SAF/UEF Claim Supervisor 

reviews investigation referral

Decision 

whether to 

authorize 

referral

SAF IG liaises with outside 

intelligence firm regarding any 

conflicts/disputes, 

expectations/preferences, 

clarification, industry standards, 

best practices, areas needing 

improvement etc.

Surveillance is not warranted

SAF IG coordinates and 

collaborates with SAF 

Deputy Director, SAF 

CFO, etc. regarding 

proper procurement 

procedures

Discussion with SAF/UEF 

Claims Department and/or 

SAF/UEF attorney, if needed

Yes

61

No

New Surveillance Referral Flowchart



Claim file assessed by 

SAF/UEF Claims 

Department and/or 

SAF/UEF attorney

SCDOI reviews and uses their 

interpretation of the 

laws/regulations and/or 

internal criteria for accepting 

a case

SAF Inspector General (IG) is 

notified to review, examine 

and assess the file and 

referral

SAF IG communicates the 

fraud referral, and non-

privileged and preliminary 

facts, findings and evidence 

regarding suspicion to the 

SCDOI for review

SAF IG coordinates and 

collaborates with point of contact 

for the Insurance Fraud Division of 

the State Department of  

Insurance (SCDOI) as well as 

SAF/UEF Claim Adjuster

Fraud referral request 

submitted to SAF/UEF Claim 

Supervisor & Chief Counsel

SAF/UEF Claim Supervisor & 

Chief Counsel reviews 

request

Decision 

whether to 

authorize 

referral

SAF Chief Counsel or 

designee performs a 

thorough privilege review of 

the claim before SAF IG 

delivers the non-privileged 

fraud file to the SCDOI

Fraud referral is not 

warranted

SAF IG coordinates and 

collaborates with the SAF 

Chief Counsel or designee 

regarding all of the above 

as needed

Discussion with SAF/UEF 

Claims Department and Chief 

Counsel

Yes

No

Decision

whether

SCDOI

accepts

SCDOI declines further 

consideration for 

investigation/prosecution

SCDOI requests further 

information from SAF/UEF

No

SAF IG liaises with SCDOI and 

State Law Enforcement 

Division (SLED) points of 

contact regarding 

communication, assistance, 

investigative efforts, etc.

Fraud Referral Flowchart

62



Special Investigations Unit Metrics

63

The Special Investigations Unit tracks the following metrics:

1. Number of in-house compensability and dependency investigations referred, 
open/active, and completed (monthly, quarterly and by fiscal year).

2. Number of pending hearings (only where investigator may be called for testimony)
scheduled (monthly, quarterly and by fiscal year).

3. Number of external intelligence assignments referred, open/active, and 
completed (monthly, quarterly and by fiscal year).

4. Number of fraud cases referred, open/active, and completed) monthly, quarterly 
and by fiscal year).

5. Number of physical security trainings (monthly, quarterly and by fiscal year).



SIU Staffing and Turnover

64

Current Employees: 3 (no current vacancies)

Fiscal Year Employee Count at 

the Start of Fiscal Year

Employee Count at 

the End of Fiscal Year

Employee Losses 

During Fiscal Year

2019-2020 3 3 0

2018-2019 2 2 1

2017-2018 2 2 0

2016-2017 2 2 0



Director

Deputy
Director

Premium
Auditors

Safety & 
Loss Control 

Specialist

Policyholder Services

Deputy Director (Program Manager II)

• Responsible for the direct supervision of the employees within the

Policyholder Services Department.

• Participates in development of annual department budget.

• Directs and supports the agency’s annual policyholder premium rates

and renewal process.

• Directs and supports the agency’s annual reinsurance renewal process.

Premium Auditor (2)

• Obtains information (current payroll, job classifications, loss history, etc.)

from all policyholders necessary to perform department functions.

• Calculates premium for all SAF Policyholders.

• Educates and trains all SAF Policyholders regarding the premium

calculation process.

• Participates and presents department data in monthly management

meetings.

Safety & Loss Control Specialist (1)

safety related training classes and• Conducts provides safety

consultation for policyholders of the State Accident Fund.

• Evaluates worksites (inspections) for safety hazards, unsafe work

practices and assists participants with OSHA standards compliance.

• Monitors and maintains safety awareness programs within the State

Accident Fund.

• Participates and presents department data in monthly management

meetings.
65



PH accepts 

Quote?

Potential Policyholder (PH) 

contacts SAF about writing

a policy

Auditor establishes premium 

and sends PH a “Quote” 

(premium estimate for policy)

PH remits amount due within

5 days for policy to activate

If SAF owes PH a refund, 

the auditor notifies the 

Finance Department. If 

PH owes, they will be 

invoiced for additional 

premium

Policy is renewed and 

audited annually until the 

policy is cancelled by PH or 

Auditor

Auditor enters names of the 

Auditor, Adjuster and NCM 

into the system

Auditor, who covers territory 

where PH operates, provides 

application to PH

PH returns completed 

application to the auditor

Auditor reviews 

application, Loss Run 

and data from 

previous policies PH 

had with SAF, if 

applicable

Auditor closes “Quote” in the 

system and sends document 

to be scanned

Auditor receives payment 

and activates policy in the 

system

Auditor contacts 

Claims Director 

for assignment 

of Adjuster and 

Nurse Case 

Manager (NCM)

Yes

electronically

A

to the WCC

After 

cancellation 

date, system

creates the final 

Payroll Report  

to be completed 

by PH

If policy is cancelled, the 

Auditor will enter cancellation 

date into the system

After Payroll Report is 

returned, the auditor 

processes the audit in order 

to finalize the finances of the 

policy (owe or refund)

No

New Policyholder Flowchart

66

Auditor creates a new policy

packet of information to be

sent to the PH via mail or

Auditor notifies Finance 

Department of cancellation, 

forwards copy of notice to 

Director of Insurance Services



Start Renewal

Premium auditors analyze 

actuary reports

Review claim reserves for 

accuracy

Test and review proposed 

rates against existing rates to 

determine true effect of rate 

change

Determine preliminary rates 

for test environment

Review new rate sheets for 

completeness and accuracy 

(make certain all needed 

class codes are present and 

rates are correct)

Run test EMOD and deliver 

reports to premium auditors 

(second business day of 

October)

Review EMOD reports and 

report any discrepancies to IT 

Department

Review expected premium 

changes of each policyholder 

and the total expected final 

premium of agency

Review all proposed 

scheduled credits or debits 

and determine accuracy

Run test renewals to 

completion and deliver test 

statements to premium 

auditors for review

Move to production from test 

environment

Run annual actuarial reports

Is this a

January

renewal?

Start July renewal process

Determine annual rates
Invoices for non-state 

policies are printed and 

delivered to the premium 

auditors for review and 

mailing

Yes

No

Policy Renewal Flowchart

67



SAF Safety Loss Prevention

Specialist briefs 

policyholder during 

Workers’ Comp 101 

presentation

Safety specialist conducts 

unscheduled, non-formal 

visits to policyholders

Safety specialist informs the

policyholder (safety contact)

of available safety services

Policyholder contacts safety 

specialist to request safety 

services, if needed

Safety specialist conducts 

and documents requested 

services

Safety specialist, claims 

adjuster or auditor notices 

increase in claims and 

reaches out to policyholder

Safety specialist consults or 

schedules on-site services, if 

requested

Safety & Loss Referral Flowchart

68



Policyholder Services Metrics

69

The Policyholder Services Department tracks the following metrics for:

Premium Audit

1. Number of audits completed within 180 days of renewal.

2. Average number of days for completion of all assigned audits.

3. Number of policyholder visits/training.

Safety & Loss

1. Total number of safety-related policyholder contacts (emails, phone calls, training).

2. Total number of training classes.

3. Total number of training class attendees.

4. Number of policyholders visited for training classes.

5. Total number of inspections.

6. Number of positive survey responses post policyholder training.



Policyholder Services Department Staffing and Turnover

70

Current employees: 3 (no current vacancies)

Fiscal Year Employee Count at 

the Start of Fiscal Year

Employee Count at 

the End of Fiscal Year

Employee Losses 

During Fiscal Year

2019-2020 3 4 1

2018-2019 3 3 0

2017-2018 3 3 0

2016-2017 3 3 0



Director

IT Director

Senior 
Programmer

Programmers

Technicians

71

Information Technology (IT)
IT Director (Information Technology Manager I) (1)

• Responsible for direct supervision of Senior Programmer

and Technicians.

• Participates and presents department data in monthly
management meetings.

Senior Programmer (Systems Programmer/Developer III) (1)

• Performs all programming duties pertaining to system
maintenance, system upgrades, and new implementation.

• Responsible for the direct supervision of Programmer.

• Assists management and procurement staff regarding the
planning and execution of critical agency projects.

• Responds to programming related help desk tickets.

Programmer (Information Systems/Business Analyst I) (1)

• Performs light programming duties pertaining to updates,

break/fix requests, and internal reports.

• Assists Senior Programmer when needed.



Director

IT Director

Senior 
Programmer

Programmers

Technician

Information Technology (IT)

Lead Systems Administrator (Systems Engineer) (1)

72

• Responsible for all IT related infrastructure maintenance,

upgrades, and implementations.

• Monitors system logs for system errors, malicious activity,

etc.

• When necessary, reports any cyber-security related
incidents to DIS.

Help Desk Technician (IT Technician I) (1)

• Responsible for all help desk functions including escalation

of help desk tickets to other IT staff.

• Works with agency’s managed print vendor.

• Maintains agency phone services.



Helpdesk comes in and 

the primary Help Desk 

Tech is responsible for 

assessing the ticket

Ticket is closed

Ticket reassigned to the 

proper person

Responsible tech reaches out 

to the user to get additional 

information that may be 

required to troubleshoot the 

issue

Decision on 

whether or 

not to 

elevate

Ticket is to be completed 

within 3 business days (unless 

the need is urgent) and the 

user confirms with the 

responsible tech that the issue

has been resolved

Yes

No

IT Helpdesk Ticket Workflow

73



Information Technology Metrics

74

• Number of opened help desk tickets.

• Number of closed help desk tickets.

• Number of help desk ticket outstanding.

• Average completion time per help desk ticket closed.

• Physical inventory of all IT related equipment.

• Number of incident responses.



IT Department Staffing and Turnover

75

Current employees: 5 (no current vacancies)

Fiscal Year Employee Count at 

the Start of Fiscal Year

Employee Count at 

the End of Fiscal Year

Employee Losses 

During Fiscal Year

2019-2020 11 6 1

2018-2019 9 11 1

2017-2018 10 9 1

2016-2017 10 10 0



SC State Accident Fund

76

Agency Presentation

• Organizational Units

• Questions

Agency Information
Erin Farthing, Acting Agency Director

Primary Agency Staff Contact for Oversight Study

Matthew Hansford, Deputy Director

• Main Agency Contact Information

• Phone: 803-896-5800

• Email: webmaster@saf.sc.gov

• Website address: www.saf.sc.gov

mailto:webmaster@saf.sc.gov
http://www.saf.sc.gov/



